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Greater London Authority/ European Social Fund 2014-20 
 

Team London - Head 2Work Market Warming Event  
7 June 2019 

Committee Room 4&5: City Hall 
 
 
Questions and Answers from the event: 

 
Q1. 
In terms of the social action project, can you define what that will look like and 
how to make it more inviting to the young people? 
 
A1.  We are not being prescriptive. We envisage that bidders will interpret this 
concept and relay their ideas around social action projects within their bids. 
 
Q2. 
Is the social action project concept similar to the National Citizenship Service 
(NCS) programme? How long should it last? 
 
A2.  The NCS programme is aimed at young people up to 18 years of age. Our 
Head 2Work project is aimed at 18-24-year olds.  
 
In terms of the length of the social action project, we would expect a project to be 
long enough to offer the opportunity for the participants to enhance or develop 
transferable skills. It is envisaged that the Business Mentors will help the young 
people to shape and deliver their social action projects.  
 
Q3. 
Can we pay expenses to the participants?  
 
A3.  You can pay expenses to participants. Expenses will need to be factored into 
your budget. 
 
Q4. 
Are young people with complex needs eligible for this project? 
 
A4.  Young people with complex needs can be supported by this project. If your 
project is looking to support young people with complex needs then you will need to 
make sure that all necessary support e.g. mentoring, is costed into your project 
budget. 
 
Q5. 
We have worked with 18-24-year olds who are homeless. We have found it 
hard to get them into sustainable jobs. The challenge is not just accessing 
jobs, but once they start earning the amount of rent they have to pay at their 
local hostels basically starts to trap them in debt. How could we address this 
in this project? 
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A5.  It is envisaged that bidders will have good relationships with employers in 
order to access job opportunities. The challenges faced by young people 
experiencing homelessness are specific and may be difficult to address in this 
project. The GLA will be developing projects for homeless people in the next round 
of funding opportunities expected to go live in the Autumn. 
 
Q6. 
If you are aiming for 2-3 bids, and you get 3 proposals for half of the money 
each, will you look to scale down the projects? 
 
A6.  Section 3.2 ‘The Volume of Grants on Offer’ page 12 of the published 
Specification details how we will approach funding 2-3 bids for this project. If 
necessary, we will negotiate the value of bids down. 
 
Q7. 
In the last round the weekly updates uploaded on the portal were very 
confusing and it was not clear which was the best document to refer to. How 
will you ensure this is avoided this time? 
 
A7.  The last round was administered through TFL’s Pro-contract. We are not 
using Pro-contract for this funding opportunity. We will upload an updated Head 
2Work Q&A document every Friday up to 12th July. 
 
Q8. 
Can you provide more detail on the payment model for this project? 
 
A8.  This funding opportunity is Payment by Results and the model is detailed in 
Section 3.3 ‘The Payment Model & Trigger Payments’ page 13 of the published 
Specification.  
 
Q9. 
How long is a sustained outcome? 
 
A9.  A sustained outcome is where a participant stays in a job or education/training 
placement for 26 weeks out of 32 weeks. It is still possible to claim a sustained 
outcome where a participant changes jobs within that timeframe as long as this can 
be evidenced. 
 
Q10. 
Can you confirm the total number of outcomes and the budget for this project? 
 
A10.  The total number of outcomes for this project is at least 200 sustained 
outcomes over three years for the project budget of £744,000. If you bid for half of 
the budget, you should be proposing at least 100 sustained outcomes. 
 
Q11. 
Is there a specific geographical focus for this project? 
 
A11.  The geographical focus of the project is London, but please note it is not a 
Pan-London project. Delivery should be localised at borough(s) level. Bidders should 
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demonstrate there is a need for the project in their identified geographic location, as 
well as having established networks and working partnerships across that 
landscape. There is no restriction on the choice of borough(s). 
 
Q12. 
Would this project be suitable for young people in custody? 
 
A12.  Her Majesty’s Prison and Probation Service (HPPS), previously known as the 
National Offender Management Service (NOMS), commissions projects for young 
people in custody.  
 
 
 
 


